
 

 

 
 
 

CITY OF SAN DIMAS 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

MINUTES 
 

Regularly Scheduled Meeting 
Wednesday, February 6, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. 
245 East Bonita Avenue, Council Chambers 

 
 
Present 
Chairman Jim Schoonover 
Commissioner David Bratt 
Commissioner John Davis 
Commissioner Stephen Ensberg 
Commissioner M. Yunus Rahi 
Assistant City Manager for Com. Dev. Larry Stevens 
Senior Planner Marco Espinoza 
Associate Planner Kristi Rojas 
Associate Planner Jennifer Williams 
Planning Commission Secretary Jan Sutton 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER AND FLAG SALUTE 
 
Chairman Schoonover called the regular meeting of the Planning Commission to order at 7:00 
p.m. and Commissioner Bratt led the flag salute.  
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
1. Approval of Minutes: January 23, 2013 
 
MOTION:  Moved by Bratt, seconded by Ensberg to approve the Consent Calendar.  Motion 
carried 4-0-0-1 (Davis abstain). 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
2. CONSIDERATION OF DPRB CASE NO. 11-05; CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 12-04; 

TENTATIVE TRACT MAP NO. 11-01; TREE REMOVAL PERMIT NO. 12-24 – A request to 
Subdivide Two Lots, consisting of 1.81 acres of vacant land, into a total of Six (6) Lots 
located at 301 South San Dimas Avenue.  Five (5) of the lots will be developed with Single-
Family Residences, and the sixth lot will have Six (6) Townhomes, and Eight (8) Mixed-Use 
Residences. 

 
Staff report presented by Associate Planner Kristi Rojas, who stated this proposal is to 
develop a 1.8 acre vacant lot in the CG-3 Zone, Subareas A and D with single-family 
residences, townhomes and mixed-use residences.  She stated after the May 10, 2012 DPRB 



Planning Commission Minutes   Page 2 
February 6, 2013 
 
 

 

meeting the applicant was instructed to conduct a community meeting with the neighbors.  That 
meeting was held on June 5, 2012 and was attended by four residents.  They were not opposed 
to the development in general but did have concerns over the construction process, which have 
been addressed in the conditions.   
 
The single-family homes will face west towards Shirlmar on lots similar in size to the existing 
residential development.  The applicant is proposing style variations on each home that reflect 
Craftsman or Spanish architecture.  There will be six townhomes directly east of the single-
family homes, with the mixed-use townhomes facing San Dimas Avenue, and went over their 
features on the elevation drawings.  There will be ten guest parking spaces between the 
buildings which meets the minimum requirement.  Overall the project is short by 13 on-site 
spaces; however, there are ten street parking spaces that can be counted towards the required 
parking for the project.  For the additional three spaces, the applicant is utilizing the standard in 
the CG zone that states parking requirements for a commercial project can be waived if there is 
a public parking lot within 500 feet.  The applicant has demonstrated there are 20 available 
spaces in the City’s public parking lot that this project can use, which has been reviewed and 
approved by the City Engineer.  
 
Commissioner Ensberg asked if this project contributes to the affordable housing 
requirements of the Housing Element.  He asked if they would be able to utilize any housing 
density bonus credit, and if there are any differences to the live/work units from the ones at 
Grove Station.  He also asked about the off-site parking spaces. 
 
Associate Planner Rojas stated this parcel was not identified in the Housing Element as a 
site to provide affordable housing units on, and they are not receiving any density bonus credits.  
The uses for the live/work units are similar to those at Grove Station other than food uses are 
not allowed here.  She stated Staff has allowed them to incorporate the ten street parking 
spaces and three public parking lot spaces to meet the required commercial parking.  They do 
have the minimum required guest parking spaces on-site. 
 
Commissioner Davis asked where the street parking spaces will be in relation to the trees, 
and asked about Condition 12-2 regarding satellite dishes, and if the City had regulations on 
them. 
 
Associate Planner Rojas stated the street improvements have already been installed so no 
trees will be impacted by the construction of this project. 
 
Senior Planner Marco Espinoza stated the City does have standards for the very large 
satellite dish units like you saw in the 1980’s but not on today’s roof-mounted style dishes.  It will 
be up to the HOA through the CC&Rs to set any limits on them. 
 
Commissioner Rahi asked if the CC&Rs will apply to both the single-family and multi-family 
portions of the project, and if the ten street parking spaces are for guest parking also.  He also 
asked who conducted the traffic study. 
 
Associate Planner Rojas stated the CC&Rs will only apply to the multi-family portion of the 
project.  The street parking is for the commercial parking requirement as they have the required 
number of guest parking spaces on-site.  She stated K2 Traffic Engineering in Tustin conducted 
the traffic study. 
 
Commissioner Rahi stated he was concerned that public parking on San Dimas Avenue was 
being used to accommodate their required parking. 
 



Planning Commission Minutes   Page 3 
February 6, 2013 
 
 

 

Associate Planner Rojas stated Grove Station also utilizes public parking in front of the 
buildings for part of their requirement for the commercial units, and this will be used in the same 
way.  This area will be dedicated to the City so will remain public parking. 
 
Chairman Schoonover stated the parking spaces have already been constructed on San 
Dimas Avenue and are marked for parking. 
 
Commissioner Rahi felt that street parking should not be used to help a project meet their 
parking requirement.  He asked if there was a land-use difference in definition between mixed-
use and live/work units, and why the units on San Dimas Avenue were not being identified as 
live/work like the units across the street. 
 
Associate Planner Rojas stated they are the same in concept and use, it is just a difference 
in terminology used in the code section. 
 
Commissioner Davis asked if overnight parking would be allowed in the on-site spaces, and if 
there was any condition on how many have to be available for the commercial use once the 
residents move in. 
 
Associate Planner Rojas stated overnight parking would be allowed on-site as that is where 
the guest parking is located, but anyone using the street parking would need to have an 
overnight parking permit.  As to how the spaces will be used once the units are occupied, that 
will be governed by the CC&Rs. 
 
Senior Planner Espinoza stated they could also condition that the guest spaces could be 
designated and signed as such, similar to what they did at Grove Station, or possibly allow 
commercial parking during the day and guest parking at night.  It would be up to the HOA to 
enforce unless an amendment was made to the City’s ordinance that would allow enforcement 
on private property. 
 
Commissioner Bratt asked if there was a requirement to park two cars inside the garages 
since there are no driveways.  He felt if it was not required, people would use the garage as 
storage space and fill up the guest parking spaces. 
 
Senior Planner Espinoza stated they can add a condition to the CC&Rs to help control that 
situation. 
 
Commissioner Bratt asked if parking was allowed along Commercial Street. 
 
Associate Planner Rojas stated it was allowed, but that was not being counted as part of the 
required parking for the project. 
 
Commissioner Bratt stated he was concerned about the grading and positioning of the house 
on Lot 6 because he felt that it would be much higher than the house to the west and look out of 
place. 
 
Chairman Schoonover stated there was considerable discussion regarding this lot at DPRB.  
It was reconfigured based on those discussions and they were able to resolve the issues they 
had with the width of the lot and the location of the house. 
 
Commissioner Bratt asked if there were any restrictions for overnight parking in the City 
parking lot or the Park and Ride lot. 
 



Planning Commission Minutes   Page 4 
February 6, 2013 
 
 

 

Assistant City Manager Larry Stevens stated they are public parking lots and subject to the 
overnight parking permit requirements. 
 
Commissioner Rahi inquired about the triangular piece shown on Lot 6 and asked if that was 
part of the public right-of-way. 
 
Associate Planner Rojas stated that area is for street dedication. 
 
Chairman Schoonover opened the meeting for public hearing.  Addressing the Commission 
was: 
 
Steve Eide, Drafting and Design Ltd., 158 W. Orange Street, Covina, Applicant, stated in 
regards to Lot 6, there will be a retaining wall installed adjacent to the existing home and that 
with the grading the new house will appear to be at the same level as the existing house to the 
west from Arrow Highway. 
 
Chairman Schoonover asked if the project would be constructed all at once or in phases. 
 
Steve Eide, Applicant, stated they will be constructing this in phases, and probably start with 
the single-family homes first. 
 
There being no further comments, the public hearing was closed. 
 
Chairman Schoonover asked if there will be a condition to maintain the vacant part of the 
project while phasing is occurring. 
 
Associate Planner Rojas stated there will be a condition regarding maintenance of the vacant 
portion until construction occurs. 
 
Commissioner Davis asked if there was any type of development agreement for this project 
setting a limit on when construction needs to occur. 
 
Associate Planner Rojas stated the only limits are the time limits of the approval itself; there 
are no other requirements for when they would have to start construction. 
 
Commissioner Ensberg wanted to ensure that the parking issues were addressed. 
 
Senior Planner Espinoza stated they will be added to the CC&Rs and covered as part of the 
City Attorney’s review of the document. 
 

RESOLUTION PC-1476 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
SAN DIMAS RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
REVIEW BOARD CASE NO. 11-05, A REQUEST TO CONSTRUCT 
FIVE (5) SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCES ALONG SHIRLMAR AVENUE 
AND FOURTEEN (14) TOWNHOMES (SIX (6) REGULAR AND EIGHT 
(8) MIXED-USE) FACING SAN DIMAS AVENUE ON THE PARCELS 
LOCATED AT 301 SOUTH SAN DIMAS AVENUE  (APN:  8390-019-037, 
0390-019-036)  

 
 
 



Planning Commission Minutes   Page 5 
February 6, 2013 
 
 

 

RESOLUTION PC-1477 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
SAN DIMAS RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF TENTATIVE TRACT 
MAP 71259, A REQUEST TO SUBDIVIDE TWO (2) EXISTING LOTS 
THAT TOTAL APPROXIMATELY 1.81 ACRES IN SIZE INTO SIX (6) 
RESIDENTIAL LOTS (FIVE (5) SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENCES AND 
ONE (1) MULTI-FAMILY/MIXED-USE) ON THE PROPERTY LOCATED 
AT 301 SOUTH SAN DIMAS AVENUE (APN:  8390-019-037, 0390-019-
036)  
 

RESOLUTION PC-1478 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
SAN DIMAS RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF CONDITIONAL USE 
PERMIT 12-04, A REQUEST TO CONSTRUCT FIVE (5) SINGLE-
FAMILY RESIDENCES ALONG SHIRLMAR AVENUE AND FOURTEEN 
(14) TOWNHOMES (SIX (6) REGULAR AND EIGHT (8) MIXED-USE) 
FACING SAN DIMAS AVENUE ON THE PARCELS LOCATED AT 301 
SOUTH SAN DIMAS AVENUE  (APN:  8390-019-037, 0390-019-036)  

 
MOTION:  Moved by Ensberg, seconded by Davis to adopt Resolutions PC-1476, PC-1477, 
and PC-1478 recommending the City Council approve DPRB Case No. 11-05, Tentative Tract 
Map 71259, Conditional Use Permit 12-04, and Tree Removal Permit No. 12-24; and directing 
Staff to add a condition to the CC&Rs to address the parking concerns and with the 
understanding that there is no difference between the terminology of Mixed-Use and Live/Work 
units.  Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATION 
 
3. Assistant City Manager for Community Development 
Senior Planner Marco Espinoza introduced new Associate Planner Jennifer Williams and 
announced that Associate Planner Kristi Rojas was leaving the City and going to work in the 
private sector. 
 
4. Members of the Audience 
No communications were made. 
 
5. Planning Commission 
In response to Commissioners Davis and Bratt, Senior Planner Espinoza stated the For 
Sale/Leasing signs in commercial zones were to be removed by February 8, 2013.  If they were 
not removed by that date, Code Enforcement would be sending First Notices and initiating the 
enforcement process.  Staff is still working out a schedule for weekend code enforcement, 
which should be implemented sometime this year. 
 



Planning Commission Minutes   Page 6 
February 6, 2013 
 
 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTION:  Moved by Ensberg, seconded by Davis to adjourn.  Motion carried 5-0.  The meeting 
adjourned at 7:44 p.m. to the regular Planning Commission meeting scheduled for February 20, 
2013, at 7:00 p.m. 
 

 
 
 
  _______________________________ 
  Jim Schoonover, Chairman 
  San Dimas Planning Commission 

 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Jan Sutton 
Planning Commission Secretary 
 
 
 
Approved:  February 20, 2013 


